
BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Infinite Water Solutions Pvt Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Infinite Water Solutions Pvt
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the
profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis and Board's report including annexures to Board's report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The aforesaid other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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• When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as
required under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 'Annexure A' a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, there is no remuneration
paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year under the provisions of section
197of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

IV. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures performed, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
II(e), as provided in (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.
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vi.Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for financial year ended March
31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of an audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally,
where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated in the previous year, the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistrationNo. 101048W

'~r4' tJdi~~
Kaushal Mehta
Partner
MembershipNo: 111749
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2025
UDIN: 25111749BMOLHK8832
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors' Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report to the Members oflnfinite Water Solutions Pvt Ltd of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state
that:
(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and
relevant details of right of use assets

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment by which all items of Property, Plant and Equipment are
verified once a year. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the said programme, items of Property, Plant and Equipment were
physically verified during the year and no material discrepancies were observed on
such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, with regards to the nature and size of its
inventories, the coverage and procedure of such physical verification carried out
during the year were appropriate. Discrepancies noted during such physical
verification were less than 10% of respective inventory classes. All discrepancies
noted during the year were properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs five
crores, in aggregate at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of its current assets. Accordingly reporting
under clause 3 (ii) b of the order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
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other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or given guarantees in
respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are
applicable. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph (iv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions of section
73 to 76 or any relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148( 1) of the Act, for any
of the products of the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the
Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory
dues referred above were in arrears as at the year end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, outstanding dues of
sales tax, Goods & Service tax and income tax that have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes are given below *:

Period to

Amount which the Forum whereName of the Nature of (Rs in amount dispute isstatute dues relateslakhs)* (Financial pending

Year)

Uttarakhand Value added 0.17 2013-14 Joint
Value Added tax Commissioner
Tax Act 2005 (Appeals)

Uttarakhand Value added 0.59 2015-16 Deputy
Value Added tax Commissioner
Tax Act 2005 of commercial

tax
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Income tax Disallowance 140.54 2011-12 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of of Income-tax

deduction (Appeals)
under 80lC

Income Tax Disallowance 0.51 2014-15 Deputy
Act, 1961 of Commissioner

deduction of Income
under 80lC taxes

Income Tax Disallowance 3.39 2015-16 CPC Bengaluru
Act, 1961 of MAT

Credit

Income Tax TP 189.03 2016-17 Commissioner
Act, 1961 Adjustment of Income-tax

(Appeals)

Income Tax Addition of 263.39 2020-21 Deputy
Act, 1961 GST & PF Commissioner

of Income
taxes

CGST Act, Difference in 2.11 2017-18, First Appellate
2017 input credits 2018-19 Authority,

inGST GST,
return 2B vs Uttarakhand

Actual

*As represented by Management.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which was not recorded in the books
of account. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender during
the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, no term loans were obtained or
utilised during the year by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, no funds have been raised on short term basis by the
Company.

8



BATLIBOI & PUROHIT Continuation Sheet

Chartered Accountants
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit

procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partly or optionally) during the year.

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was filed with the Central Government during the year
or upto the date of the Report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were
received by the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a 'nidhi' company and it has not accepted any deposits.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, transactions with the related parties during the year
were in compliance with sections 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards. Provisions of Section 177 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
internal audit is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year. Accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank ofIndia. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group (as defined
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction 2016) does not have
any Core Investment Company ('CIC') as part of the Group. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that om reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR")
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act,
2013 in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135of the
said Act.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, the Company did not have any ongoing project in
terms of Section 135 of the Act during the year. Accordingly, provision of sub­
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act and clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xxi) This Report is issued on the standalone financial statements of the Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Batliboi & Purohit
CharteredAccountants
Firm RegistrationNo. 101048W

\,tf~
Kaushal Mehta
Partner
MembershipNo: 111749

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2025
UDIN: 25111749BMOLHK8832
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(t) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of Infinite Water Solutions Pvt Ltd of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements ofInfinite
Water Solutions Pvt Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICA!'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
...\,;:::=~internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
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included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that:
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliancewith the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Batliboi & Purohit
CharteredAccountants
Firm Registration No. 101048W

" 71· tJ_JJ_ .r:
Kausha~
Partner
MembershipNo: 111749

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2025
UDIN: 25111749BMOLHK8832
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Infinite Wat!!r SQlutiQns Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at Year ended March 31, 2025

'f in Lakhs
Particulars NQtes As at Year Ended As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 182.98 182.39

(b) Right of use assets 5 63.36 52.64

(g) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 0.71 0.71

(ii) Other financial assets 7 8.01 8.01

(h) Income tax asset (net) 8 92.75 12.07

(i) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 11.46 15.02

Ul Other non-current assets 10 3.92

Total NQn-current Assets 359.27 274.76

Current Assets
(a) Inventories 11 889.41 787.76

(b) Financial assets
(ii) Trade receivables 12 596.12 2,751.54

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,936.17 1.04

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 13 0.50

(c) Other current assets 10 288.77 151.70

TQtal Current Assets 3,710.47 3,692.54

Total Assets 4,069.74 3,967.30

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 700.00 700.00

(b) Other equity 15 2,985.15 2,814.99

Total Equity 3,685.15 3,514.99

Liabilities
NQn-current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16

(ii) Lease liabilities 17 38.03 28.17

(b) Provisions 18 16.33 13.54

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9 -
Tota] NQn-current Liabilities 54.37 41.71

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16 -
(ii) Lease liabilities 17 37.79 38.94

(iii) Trade and other payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 16.87 70.20

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 203.39 279.01

(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 0.30 0.30

(b) Provisions 18 0.47 0.42

(c) Income tax liabilities (net) 8 50.20 4.75

(d) Other current liabilities 21 21.20 16.98

TQtal Current Liabilities 330.22 410.60

Total Liabilities 384.58 452.31

TQtal Equity and Liabilities 4,069.74 3,967.30

Significant accounting policies 2&3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
FQrBatlibQi & PurQhit
Chartered Accountants

\~"'~:zr~
~

Kaushal Mehta
Partner
Membership NO.:111749

FQrand behalf of the BQard Qf DiredQrs Qf Infinite Water SQlutiQns Private Limited

Gaurav Pradip Khandelwal
Director
DIN: 10214230

Sriniv
Director
DIN: 10185293

Place:Mumbai
Date: 06.05.2025

Place:Mumbai
Date: 06.05.2025

Place:Mumbai
Date: 06.05.2025



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025

if in Lakhs
Particulars Notes Year ended March Year ended

31,2025 March 31, 2024

I Income
Revenuefrom Operations 23 3,780.44 5,683.67
Other income and other gains / (losses)- net 24 18.41 32.36

Total Income 3,798.85 5,716.03

II Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 25 3,194.77 4,506.97
Purchasesof stock-in-trade 25 21.43 85.15
Changesin inventories of finished goods, spares,stock-in-trade 25 (145.79) (66.69)
and work-in-proqress
Employeebenefits expense 26 117.86 108.52
Financecosts 27 12.52 17.89
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 46.27 60.07
Other expenses 29 223.79 249.34

Total expenses 3,470.85 4,961.25

III Profit before exceptional items and tax 328.00 754.78
Less: Exceptionalitems 25 (90.00)

IV Profit/ (Loss) before tax and after exceptional items 238.00 754.78

Less:Tax expense
Current tax 30 50.94 195.43
Deferred tax charge 30 3.55 1.34
Taxrelated to earlier Year 11.15 (1.30)

65.64 195.47

V Profit/CLoss) for the year 172.36 559.31

VI Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurementsof the defined benefit plans gain/(Ioss) (2.93) (1.30)
Income tax relating to above 0.74 0.33
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, (2.19) (0.97)
net of tax

VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year 170.17 558.34

Earnings per equity share:
- Basicand Diluted earnings per share 31 2.43 7.99

Significant accounting policies 2&3

Theaccompanyingnotes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For Batliboi & Purohit
CharteredAccountants

r~~;rIJ1;W
Kausha~
Partner
Membership No.:111749~~~

~

,((J9-\f~:..fZ~
Place:Mumbai I.....V,. ""\~O"
Date:06.05.2025 ( '1):t.)

( Mumbai )::;
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For and behalf of the Board of Directors of Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited

S,;niv.. S"~'ri
Director Director
DIN: 10214230 DIN: 10185293

Place:Mumbai
Date:06.05.2025

Place:Mumbai
Date:06.05.2025



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2025

fin Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Yearended

March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit after tax and exceptional item 172.36 559.31
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 46.27 60.07
Finance costs 12.52 17.89
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.25 2.27
Exceptional Items 90.00 -

Income tax expense 65.64 196.77
Net foreign exchange gains- unrealised - 1.23
Operating Profit before Working capital Changes 387.04 837.54

Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 2,155.42 (362.68)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (191.65) 0.74
(Increase)/decrease in other assets (144.31) (89.87)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (128.95) (49.41)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (0.08) 1.28
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 4.22 (2.65)
Cash generated from operations 2,081.69 334.95
Less: Income taxes (paid) / refund received (85.43) (196.91)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,996.26 138.04

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and intangible assets (20.11) (89.41)

under development
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.53
Movement in Bank Balance other than Cash & Cash equivalents 0.50 -
Net cash used in investing activities (19.61) (88.88)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings - (22.08)
Payment of lease liabilities (36.52) (39.50)
Interest paid (4.99) (10.09)
Net cash used in financing activities (41.511 (71.67)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,935.13 (22.51)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.04 23.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,936.17 1.04
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed above 1,935.13 (22.51)

Significant accountinq policies 2&3

In terms of our report attached
For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Fjm Reqistratipn t-.to.Ji>~48W
'- ~ <4 - fJJ;fNLv
Kaushal~
Partner
Membership No.:111749

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06.05.2025

For and behalf of the Boar. of Directors of Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited

Gau~~:':.}elwal Sri.;va.s~g",
Director Director
DIN: 10214230 DIN: 10185293

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06.05.2025

Place:Mumbai
Date: 06.05.2025



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Allamounts are if in Lakh,unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital
Particulars

As at Year As at Year
Ended March Ended March
31,2025 31,2024

Opening Balance at the beginning of the year 700.00 700.00
Movement during the year - -
Closing Balance at the end of the year 700.00 700.00

B. Other equity
Current Period: April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025
Balance as at 1 April 2024 2,819.77 (4.78) 2,814.99
Changes in accounting policies or prior period errors - - -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2024 - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period ended 31 March 2025
Profitfor the year 172.36 - -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - (2.19) -
Total comprehensive income 172.36 (2.19) 170.17
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,992.13 (6.97) 2,985.16

Previous Year: April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024
Particulars Retained Items of other Total

earnings comprehensiv
e income
/(1055)

Balance as at 1 April 2023 2,260.46 (3.81) 2,256.65
Changes in accounting policies or prior period errors - - -

-
Restated balance as at 1 April 2023 - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024 -
Profitfor the year 559.31 - 559.31
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - (0.97) (0.97)
Total comprehensive income 559.31 (0.97) 558.34
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,819.77 (4.78) 2,814.99

Significantaccounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financialstatements.

2&3

Interms of our report attached
For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
FirmRegistrati<jnN'110J048Wi'~~~
Kaushal ~
Partner
Membership NO.:111749

Place:Mumbai
Date:06.05.2025

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

'";~Pri"'.Llm ited (A/
Go.", ",.dlp Khandelwal "'"'," ~"'''ri
Director Director-
DIN:10214230 DIN:10185293

Place:Mumbai
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Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Reporting entity

Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited (the 'Company') is a Company domiciled
in India, with its registered office situated at B1/B2, 7th floor, 701, Marathon
Innova,Off Ganpatrao KadamMarg, Lower Parel,Mumbai - 400013.TheCompany
was incorporated as a Joint Venture between EurekaForbes Limited, a company
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and Pentair Global S.a.r.L.,a
Luxemberg Societe a Responsabilite Limited (Pentair). The Company became a
wholly owned subsidiary of Eureka Forbes Limited w.e.f. 31 March 2021. The
manufacturing facility of the Company is located at Lal Tappar Industrial Area in
the State of Uttarakhand. The Company is primarily involved in manufacturing of
reverseosmosis membrane elements and other related water treatment products.

2. Basisof preparation

a. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)Rules,2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
'Act') and other relevant provisionsof the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of
Directorson 06 May 2025.

Detailsof the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b. Historical Cost convention

Thefinancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,on accrual
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) that are measuredat fair value.

c. Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
assumesthat the Company will be able to realize its assetsat least at the recorded
amounts and discharge its liabilities in the usual course of business.The Company
has recorded net profit before tax of Rs.238.00Lakhsfor the year ended 31 March
2025 (Rs.754.78Lakhfor the year ended 31March 2024)and, asat that date, current
assetsexceed current liabilities by Rs.3380.25 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs.3281.94
Lakhs). In view of the positive net worth, the assessment of future cash flows
projections, availability of liquid funds and investments and unused credit facilities,
the management considers that it is appropriate to prepare these financial

~ atements on a going concern basis.
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Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

d. Functional and presentation currency

Thesefinancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.),which is also the
Company's functional currency.

e. Basisof measurement

Thefinancial statements havebeen prepared on the historical cost basisexcept for
the investment in equity shareswhich has been measured on fair value basis.

f. Useof estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.Actual results
maydiffer from these estimates.

Estimatesand underlying assumptions are reviewedon anongoing basis.Revisions
to accounting estimatesare recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:
-Note 3(d)(iii)and 4 - useful life of Property,plant and equipment
-Note 3(h) and 26 - employee benefit plans
-Note 3(i) and 32 - provisionsand contingent liabilities
.Note 3(m) and 30 - Incometaxes
-Note 3(k)and 33 - Leaseclassification

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March
2025 is included in the following notes:
-Note 32 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

g. Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company'saccounting policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair values,for both financial assetsand liabilities.

Company has an established control framework with respect to the



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

measurement of fair values. This includes the finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including
Level3 fair values,and reports directly to the Board of Directors.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments.

Significant valuation issuesare reported to the Company's Board of Directors.

Fairvaluesare categorised into different levelsin a fair value hierarchy basedon the
inputs used in the valuation techniques asfollows.

- Level1:quoted prices (unadjusted) in activemarkets for identical assetsor liabilities.
- Level2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable

forthe assetor liability, either directly (i.e.asprices)or indirectly (i.e.derived from
prices).

- Level3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

TheCompany recognises transfers between levelsof the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during which the change hasoccurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is
included in the

Note 35 - financial instruments.

3. Significant accounting polices

a. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange ratesat the dates of the transactions.



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

historical cost in a foreign currencyare translated at the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Exchangedifferences are recognised in profit or loss, except
exchangedifferences arising from the translation of the equity investments which
are recognised at fair value through OCI (FVOCI).

b. Revenue recognition

Under Ind AS 115,the Company recognized revenuewhen (or as)a performance
obligation was satisfied, i.e.when 'control' of the goods underlying the particular
performance obligation were transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from saleof goods is recognized based on a 5-Step
Methodology which is as follows:
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract
Step 5: Recogniserevenuewhen (or as)the entity satisfiesa performance
obligation

Revenuefrom the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured
based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of returns, trade
discounts and volume rebates if any,asspecified in the contract with the customer.
Revenuealso excludes taxes collected from customers other than exciseduty.

c. Financialinstruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assetsand financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
becomesa party to the contractual provisionsof the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if
and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated asat FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A debt investment is measuredat FVOCIif it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a businessmodel whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cashflows and selling financial assets;and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
The Company does not have any financial assets within this category.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company has
elected to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as
FVOCl-equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as
described above are measured at FVTPL.The Company does not have any financial
assets within this category.

Financialassets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
assetsat gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.
Financial These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
assets at using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
amotised cost reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecog nition is
recognised in profit or loss.



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Debt
investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and lossesand impairment are recognised
in profit or loss.Other net gains and lossesare recognised
in OCI. On derecognition, gains and lossesaccumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity
investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly representsa recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities: CLassification, subsequent measurement and gains and Losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.A
financial liability is classified asat FVTPLif it is classifiedasheld for trading, or it is
a derivative or it is designated as suchon initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPLare measured at fair value and net gains and losses,including any interest
expense,are recognised in profit or loss.Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and lossesare recognised in profit or loss.Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.The Company does
not have any fixed liabilities under the category of FVTPL.

iii. De- recognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risksand rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assetsrecognised on
its balancesheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets,the transferred assetsarenot derecognised.

Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled,or expire.



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

TheCompanyalsoderecognisesafinancial liability when its terms aremodified and
the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case,a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financialassetsand financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a
net basisor to realise the assetand settle the liability simultaneously.

d. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses,if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchasetaxes,after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprisesthe
costof materialsand direct labor,any other costsdirectly attributable to bringing the
item to working condition for its intended use,and estimated costsof dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment havedifferent useful
lives,then they are accounted for asseparateitems (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequentexpenditure is capitalisedonly if it is probable that the future economic
benefitsassociatedwith the expenditurewill flow to the Company.



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight­
line method, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the
current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset

Plant and machinery (including
moulds)
Office equipments
Furniture and fixtures
Computers
Computer server
Vehicles- Motor car
Vehicle- Motor bike
Electric fittings

Management Useful life as per
estimate of Schedule II of the
useful life Companies Act.

2013
15 years 15 years

5 years 5 years
10 years 10 years
3 years 3 years
6 years 6 years
5 years 8 years
10 years 10 years
10 years 10 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated under the straight line method over the
period of leaseor the useful life asestimated by management, whichever is lower.

Vehicles purchased under the scheme of the Company for employees is
depreciated over a period of 5 years after reducing the residual value at 5%.

Depreciation method, useful livesand residualvaluesare reviewedat eachfinancial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on internal assessment and
consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from
(upto) the date on which asset is ready for use(disposed off).

e. Intangible assets



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

l. Acquired intangible

Intangfble assetscomprise purchased computer software are initially measured at
cost. Such intangible assetsare subsequently measured at cost lessaccumulated
amortisation and anyaccumulated impairment losses.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increasesthe future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

iii. Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is included in
depreciation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful live is asfollows:

- Software 6 years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of
each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

f. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisablevalue.The cost of
inventories is based on the weighted average method, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other
costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. In the case
of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate
shareof fixed production overheadsbasedon normal operating capacity.

Net realisablevalue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary courseof business,
lessthe estimated costsof completion and selling expenses.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the
selling pricesof related finished products.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

net realisablevalue.

The comparison of cost and net realisablevalue is made on an item-by-item basis.

g. Cashand Cash Equivalents

Forthe purpose of presentation in the statement of cashflow, cashand cash
equivalents including cashon hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or lessthat are readily
convertible to known amounts of cashand which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bankoverdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the balance sheet and are not considered as integral part of
Company's cashmanagement

h. Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments

TheCompany recognises lossallowancesfor expected credit losson financialassets
measuredat amortisedcost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses,except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected
credit losses:
- bank balancesfor which credit risk (i.e.the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) hasnot increasedsignificantly since
initial recognition.

Lossallowances for trade receivablesare alwaysmeasured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.Lifetime expected credit lossesare the expected
credit lossesthat result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. TheCompany follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of
impairment loss allowance for trade receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

12-month expected credit lossesare the portion of expected credit lossesthat
result from default events that are possiblewithin 12months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months).
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credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses,
the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking
information.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any suchindication exists,then the asset'srecoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assetsthat do not generate independent cash inflows are
grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs).EachCGU represents the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assetsor CGUs.

The recoverable amount of aCGU(or an individual asset)is the higher of its value
in useand its fair value lesscosts to sell.Value in useisbasedon the estimated
future cashflows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessmentsof the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU(or the asset).

The Company's corporate assetsdo not generate independent cash inflows. To
determine impairment of a corporate asset,recoverableamount isdetermined for
the CGUsto which the corporate assetbelongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceedsits estimated recoverable amount. Impairment lossesare recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU
isallocated the CGU,and then to reducethe carrying amounts of the other assets
of the CGU(or group of CGUs)on apro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assetsother than goodwill for which impairment
loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the losshasdecreasedor no longer exists.
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had been recognised.

i. Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measuredon an undiscounted basis
andareexpensedas the related service is provided. A liability is recognisedfor the
amount expectedto be paid e.g.,under short-term cashbonus, if the Companyhas
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee,and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably.

II. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified
monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund and
Employee State Insurance scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised asan employee benefit expensein profit or loss
in the periods during which the related servicesare renderedbyemployees.

Prepaidcontributions are recognisedasanassetto the extent that a cashrefund or
a reduction in future payments isavailable.

iii. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan.TheCompany'snet obligation in respectof defined benefit plans
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurementsof the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and lossesare recognised inOCI.TheCompanydetermines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset)for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset)during the period as
a result of contributions and benefit payments.~­dO\&p0-v......~"' 0-1::~r '0J( ":r.* ( Murnbai ) =i
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expensesrelated to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relatesto past service('past servicecost' or 'past servicegain')
or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.The
Company recognises gains and losseson the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

iv. Other long-term employee benefits

TheCompany'snet obligation in respectof long-term employee benefits other than
post-employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measuredon the basis
of an annual independent actuarialvaluation using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurementsgains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

j. Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre­
tax rate that reflects current market assumptions of the time value of money and
the risksspecific to the liability. The unwinding of discount is recognized asfinance
cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the
risksand uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provrsion are
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

k. Governmentgrants

Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company will
comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are then recognised in
profit or loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or
loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis in the periods in which such
expenses are recognised.

I. Leases

The Company hasapplied Ind AS 116w.e.f.01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. At inception of a contract, the Company assesseswhether a contract is, or
contains, a lease.A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

TheCompany's leaseassetclassesprimarily consist of leasesfor buildings. The Company,at
the inception of a contract, assesseswhether the contract is a leaseor not. A contract is, or
contains,a leaseif the contract conveysthe right to control the useof an identified assetfor
a time in exchangefor a consideration.Thispolicy hasbeenapplied to contracts existing and
entered on or after 1 April 2019.

TheCompany elected to use the following practical expedients on initial application:

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date.
Applied the exemption not to recognizeright-of-use assetsand liabilities for leaseswith
lessthan 12 months of leaseterm on the date of initial application.
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Excludedthe initial direct costs from the measurementof the right-of-use assetat the
date of initial application.
Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessmentof which transactions
are leases.Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leasesunder Ind AS17.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying assetor to restore the underlying assetor the site on
which it is located, lessany lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assetsis subsequently measuredat cost lessany accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date over the shorter of leaseterm or useful life of right-of-use asset.The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assetsare determined on the same basis as those of
property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss,
if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The leaseliability is initially measuredat the presentvalue of the leasepayments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing
rate. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessmentor lease
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company
recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use assetand statement of profit and loss depending upon the
nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurementof the leaseliability, the Company
recognisesany remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

Leasepayments included in the measurement of the leaseliability comprise the following:
fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
variable leasepayments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measuredusing the
index or rate as at the commencement date;
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
the exerciseprice under a purchaseoption that the company is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably
certain to exercisean extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unlessthe company is reasonablycertain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasuredwhen there is a change in future leasepayments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, if the company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercisea purchase,extension or termination option or if there is a revised
in-substance fixed leasepayment.
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Whenthe leaseliability is remeasuredin this way,a correspondingadjustment ismadeto
the carryingamount of the right-of-use asset,or is recordedin profit or lossif the carrying
amount of the right-of-use assethasbeen reducedto zero.Thecompanypresentsright­
of-useassetsthat do not meet the definition of investmentproperty in 'property, plant and
equipment' and leaseliabilities in 'financial liabilities' in the statementof financialposition.

TheCompanyhaselectednot to recogniseright-of-useassetsand leaseliabilitiesfor short­
term leasesthat havea leaseterm of 12monthsor lessand leasesfor which the underlying
asset is of low value.The Companyrecognisesthe leasepaymentsassociatedwith these
leasesasan expensein the Statementof Profit or Lossover the leaseterm.

m. Recognition of interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset;or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to
the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. Ifthe
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basis.

n. Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i: Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years.The amount of current tax reflectsthe best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or receivedafter considering the uncertainty, if any,
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts/ and it is intended to realise
the assetand settle the liability on a net basisor simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assetsand liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also
recognised in respect of carried forward tax lossesand tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.The existenceof
unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available.Therefore/ in caseof a history of recent losses/the Company recognises
a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidencethat sufficient taxable profit will
be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets- unrecognised or recognised/are reviewedat each reporting date and are
recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectivelythat the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realisedorthe liability issettled/ basedon the lawsthat havebeen
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurementof deferred tax reflects the tax consequencesthat would follow
from the manner in which the Companyexpects/at the reporting date/ to recoveror
settle the carryingamount of its assetsand liabilities.

Deferred tax assetsand liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax liabilities and assets/and they relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the same taxable Company/ or on different tax
entities/ but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assetson a net basisor
their tax assetsand liabilities will be realisedsimultaneously.

o. Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS)data for its
ordinary shares.BasicEPSis calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPSis determined by
adjusting the profit or lossattributable to ordinary shareholdersand the weighted
average number of ordinary sharesoutstanding after adjusting for the effects of
all potential dilutive ordinary shares.

p. Recent amendments to Indian Accounting Standards:
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to
the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not
notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable
to the Company.
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Note 4: Property, plant and eauiDment
Gross Block Plant and Leasehold Electrical Moulds Office Equipment Furniture and Vehicles Computers Total

Machinery Improvements Installatian & Fixtures
".

As at April 01, 2023 539.31 9..0.0 .0.36 13.71 1.0..05 24.53 .0.66 5.35 602.97
Additions 74.67 - 4.4.0 - 1.88 8.46 - - 89.41
Deletions (11.21) - - (4.82 (4.1.0 (4.60\ - - (24.7~
As at Year Ended March 31, 2024 602.77 9.00 4.76 8.89 7.84 28.39 0.66 5.35 667.66
Additions 19 ..03 - - - 1..08 - - - 20.11
Deletions (31..01) - - - (1.4.0' jO.8§1 - - _l33.2D
As at March 31, 2025 590.79 9.00 4.76 8.89 7.51 27.53 0.66 5.35 654.50

Depreciatian
As at April 01, 2023 43.0.64 9..0.0 .0.32 5.85 7.27 2.0.26 .0.63 4.78 478.75
Charge for the year 24.66 .0.35 .0.76 .0.94 1.53 .0.2.0 28.44
Deletions (9.911 - (4.29 (3.48' (425 - (21.93)
As at Year Ended March 31,2024 445.40 9.00 0.67 2.31 4.73 17.55 0.63 4.97 485.27
Charge for the year 15.54 - .0.43 .0.68 1.15 1.47 - - 19.28
Deletions j3.o.7§1 - - - (1.4.0' (.0.86 - - (33.0~
As at March 31, 2025 430.18 9.00 1.10 3.00 4.48 18.17 0.63 4.97 471.52

Net Block
As at Year Ended March 31, 2024 157.37 - 4.09 6.58 3.10 10.84 0.03 0.38 182.39
As at Year Ended March 31, 2025 160.62 - 3.66 5.90 3.03 9.36 0.03 0.38 182.98



Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are f in Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Right of Use Assets
Gross Block ROU Assets- Total

Buildings
As at April 01, 2023 213.11 213.11

Additions - -

Deletions - -

As at Year Ended March 31, 2024 213.11 213.11
Additions 37.71 37.71

Deletions - -

As at March 31, 2025 250.82 250.82

Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 128.85 128.85

Charge for the year 31.62 31.62

Deletions - -

As at Year Ended March 31, 2024 160.48 160.48
Charge for the year 26.99 26.99

Deletions - -

As at March 31, 2025 187.47 187.47

Net Block
As at Year Ended March 31, 2024 52.64 52.64
As at March 31, 2025 63.36 63.36

Note: The aggregate depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets is included under
depreciation and amortization expenses in the statement of profit and loss.
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Note 6: Investments
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Non-current Investments
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid up)

Investments in Equity Instruments at FVOCI *
7,143 (March 31, 2024: 7,143) equity shares of ~ 10 fully paid up in Water Quality Association (Refer Note below) 0.71 0.71

Total Unquoted Investments at cost 0.71 0.71

* The Company has designated the above investment in equity shares at FVOCIbecause these equity shares represent investment that the Company intends to
hold for long-term for strategic purposes.
* Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Note 7: Other Financial Assets
Particulars As at Year Ended As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Other Non-current Financial Assets
Security deposits
- to related parties 7.48 7.48
- to others 0.53 0.53
Total Other Non-current Financial Assets 8.01 8.01

Note 8: Income tax assets and liabilities
Particulars As at Year Ended As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income tax assets
Advance income-tax (net of Provision for Taxation) 92.75 12.07

Total Non-current Income tax assets 92.75 12.07

Income tax Liabilities
Provision for Taxation (net of Advance Tax) 50.20 4.75

Total Current Income tax liabilities 50.20 4.75
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Note 9: Deferred tax balances (net)
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

The following is the analysis of deferred tax (assets)/Iiabilities presented in the balance sheet:
Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total Deferred tax balances (net)

11.46 15.02

(11.46) (15.02)

Refer Note 38 for detailed components of Deferred taxes balances.

Note 10: Other Assets
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Other Non-current Assets
Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise
Capital Advances
Total Other Non-current Assets

3.92
3.92

Particulars As at Year Ended
March 31, 2025

As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Other Current Assets
Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise
Prepaid Expenses
Balancewith government authorities
Advances to vendors

Particulars

8.00 5.31
49.63 60.52
231.14 85.86
288.77 151.70

As at Year Ended As at Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

541.57 585.71
272.71 117.60
75.13 84.45

889.41 787.76

Note 11: Inventories

Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value)
RawMaterials, Components and Packing Material (includes in transit ~ 182.161akhs (March 31, 2024: ~ 235.86Iakhs))
Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress
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Note 12: Trade Receivables
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Current Trade Receivabies
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, debts due from related parties (Eureka Forbes Limited)
Total Current Trade Receivables

23.37
572.75

33.44
2,718.10

596.12 2,751.54

Ageing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at March 31, 2025:

Outstanding for following periods from
due date of payment

Undisputed Trade Undisputed Trade Disputed Trade Disputed Trade
Receivables - Receivables - Credit Receivables - Receivables -

Considered good impaired Considered good Considered good
Not due
Less than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Total (A)
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (B)
Total [(A) - (B»)

596.10
0.02

596.12

596.12

Ageing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at March 31, 2024:

Outstanding for following periods from
due date of payment

Undisputed Trade Undisputed Trade Disputed Trade
Receivables - Receivables - Credit Receivables -

Disputed Trade
Receivables -

CpnSidered good jmpairpd Considered Qqod Considered aood
Not due
Less than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Total (A)
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (B)
Total [(A) - (B»

2,261.18

490.39

2 751.57

2 751.57

Note 13: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period as shown in the cash flows statement can be reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows:

Particulars As at Year Ended
March 31, 2025

As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Balances with Banks in current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 Months *
Total Cash & cash equivalents

35.53
1,900.64

1.04

1936.17 1.04

Bank Balances other than cash & cash equivalents
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months *
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months * 0.50

0.50Total Bank Balances other than cash & cash equivalents

1936.17 1.04Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement

*The company's exposure to credit risk and interest risk related to cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks are disclosed in Note 35.
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Note 14: Equity Share Capital
Particulars Number of shares

Authorised Share capital:
As at April 01, 2023
Increase during the year
As at Year Ended March 31, 2024
Increaseduring the year
As at Year Ended March 31, 2025

70,00,000

70,00,000

70,00,000

Particulars As at Year Ended
March 31, 2025

As at March 31,
2024

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
7,000,000 (31 March 2024: 7,000,000) fully paid equity shares of Rs.10 each 700.00 700.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.
The Company has a single class of equity shares.Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets
on winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, subject to preferential right of preference shareholders to
payment of dividend. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to his/its share of the paid-up equity share
caoital of the Cornoanv.

Details of shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Number of shares
hel

% of holding Number of shares
held

% of holding

Eureka Forbes Limited*
Total

69,99,993 99.99% 69,99,993 99.99%
69,99,993 99.99% 69,99,993 100%

* the remaining shares are jointly held by nominees of Eureka Forbes Limited, the holding company with effect from 31 March 2021

·1 f h h Id b h P f hDetal s 0 s are 0 inas I)Yt e romoters 0 t e Group:

Promoter Name
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Number of shares held % of holding Number of shares % of holding
held

Fully paid equity shares:
Eureka Forbes Limited 69,99,993 99.99% 69,99,993 99.99%

For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance sheet is prepared:
i. Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash: Nil
ii. Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares: Nil
iii. Aggregate number and class of shares bought back: Nil
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Note 15: Other equity

Particulars As at Year Ended
March 31, 2025

As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Retained earnings
Balanceat beginning of year
Add/ (less):Profit/ (Loss)for the year
Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of defined benefit obligation, net of tax
Balance at end of the year

2,814.98
172.36
(2.19)

2,260.46
559.31
(4.78)

2,985.15 2,814.99

Capital reserve
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year
Balance at end of the year
Total Other Equity 2,985.15 2,814.99

Note 16: Borrowings
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Non-current Borrowings
Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans
Banks - RupeeTerm loan
Total Non-current Borrowings

Current Borrowings
Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans
Banks - RupeeTerm loan

Loans repayable on demand
Banks - Cashcredit/Buyers credit
Total Current Borrowings

Reconciliation of movement in borrowing to cash flow from financing activity:

Particulars As at Year Ended
March 31. 2025

As at Year Ended
March 31. 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year
-Non current borrowing
-current borrowing

-current maturity of non current borrowing

22.26
17.62

(17.62)

(0.17)
22.08

- Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Total opening balance

Cash flow movement
-Proceeds from non current borrowing
-Repayment of non current borrowing
-Net (decrease)/increase in cash credit facility

(22.08)

Balance at the closing of the year
-Non current borrowing
-current borrowing

-current maturity of non current borrowing

- Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Total closing balance

* Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are disclosed in Note 35.
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Note 17: Lease liabilities
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at March 31,

2024

Non-current Leaseliabilities
Current Leaseliabilities

38.03
37.79

28.17
38.94

Refer Note 33 for detailed components of Lease liabilities.

Note 18: Provisions
Particulars As at Year Ended As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

0.67 2.17
15.66 11.37
16.33 13.54

0.02 0.07
0.45 0.35
0.47 0.42

Non-current Provisions
Employee benefits - compensated absences
Gratuity payable
Total Non-current Provisions

Current Provisions
Employee benefits - compensated absences
Gratuity payable
Total Current Provisions

(i) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employee's as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are
eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately
for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follow:
As at Year Ended
March 31. 2025

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest expense
Total amount recognised in profit or 1055

Remeasurements
loss/(gain) from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gain)/Ioss
(gain)/Ioss Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Benefit payments
Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

11.72

1.27

l.l0

As at Year Ended
March 31. 2024

8.93

0.99

0.85

2.38 1.84

0.70

2.23

1.12

0.18

2.93 1.30

0.38

16.11 11.72

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:

Discount rate
Salarygrowth rate
Retirement age
Withdrawal rates
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation

7.21% 7.49%
5% 5.00%

60 years 60 years
2% 2.00%

5 years 5 years
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Assumptions regarding future mortality rates are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 (Urban) as published by Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (IRDA).

The actuarial valuation is carried out yearly by an independent actuary. The discount rate used for determining the present value of obligation under the
defined benefit plan is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting year on Indian Government Bonds. The currency and the term of
the government bonds is consistent with the currency and term of the defined benefit obligation.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Discount rate (1% increase) -1.B4 (1.3B)
Discount rate (1% decrease) 2.19 1.65
Future salary growth (1% increase) 2.21 1.67
Future salary growth (1% decrease) -1.89 (1.42)
Attrition movement (1% increase) 0.36 0.36
Attrition movement (1%decrease) -0.41 (0.41)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions
the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year) has been
applied aswhen calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change as compared to the prior year.

(i i) Defined contribution plan

The Company also has certain defined contribution plan. Contributions are made to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme for employees at the
specified rate as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is
limited to the amount contributed and it has neither further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards
defined contribution plan is Rs476,888 (31 March 2024: Rs278,968).
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Note 19: Trade payables
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other
Trade payables to related parties (Refer Note 34)
Total Trade Payables

16.87
203.39

70.20
279.01

220.26 349.20

'The company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 35

Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at March 31, 2025:
Outstanding for following periods from Undisputed dues- Undisputed dues -

due date of payment MSME Others
Disputed dues­

MSME
Disputed dues­

MSME
Not due 14.99 191.20
Lessthan 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Total

1.88 12.19

16.87 203.39

Outstanding for following periods from Undisputed dues- Undisputed dues -
due date of payment MSME Others

Disputed dues­
MSME

Disputed dues­
MSME

Not due 68.64 248.22
Lessthan 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Total

1.56 30.79

70.20 279.01

Note (a):Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 under the Chapter on delayed payments to
Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars As at Year.Ended
March 31, 2025

As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on year end
(ii) Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on year end
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the MSME suppliers beyond the
appointed day
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year (without adding the interest under MSME Development Act)
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on year end
(vi) The amount of interest due and payable to be disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961

16.87 66.11
4.09

4.09

Note 20: Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Other Current Financial Liabilities
Interest free trade deposits
Other payables
Total Other Current Financial liabilities

0.30 0.30

0.30 0.30

, The Company's exposure to liquidity risks related to other financials liabilities is disclosed in Note 35.
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Note 21: Other Liabilities
Particulars As at Year Ended

March 31, 2025
As at Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Other Current Liabilities
Statutory liabilities (Contributions to PF,pension, ESIC,withholding taxes, VAT,GST,etc.)
Dues to employees
Other payables
Total Other Current Liabilities

3.43
14.88
2.89

4.14
12.83
0.01

21.20 16.98

22. Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:
- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total 'equity' (as shown in the balance sheet).

The gearing ratios are as follows:
As at Year Ended As at Year Ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowings
Less:Cash and cash equivalents
Adjusted net debt
Total equity
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio

1,936.17 1.04

3,685.15
0%

3,514.99
0%
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Note 23: Revenue from operations
Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March

31,2025 31,2024

Sale of products
Manufactured goods
Traded goods

Total Saleof Products

3,764.64
12.77

5,592.47
86.85

3,777.41 5,679.32

Scrap sales 3.04 4.35

Total Revenue from operations . 3,780.44 5,683.67

Information about major customer
Revenue from one customer which individually constitute more than 97 percent of the company's total revenue is Rs366,489,350 (previous year revenue from
one customer constitute more than 97 percent of the company's total revenue was Rs543,547,045)

Note 24: Other Income and other gains/ (losses)
Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March

31,2025 31,2024

Other Income
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at fair value through profit or 1055:
Bank deposits (at amortised cost)
Others
Total (A)

0.36
0.01 0.01
0.37 0.01

Other gains/(Iosses) - net
Net foreign exchange gains
Total (B)

18.04 32.35
18.04 32.35

Total Other Income and other gains (A+B) 18.41 32.36
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Note 25:Cost of goods sold
Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March

31,2025 31,2024

585.71 653.15
3,240.63 4,439.53
3,826.34 5,092.67
(541.57) (585.71)
(90.00)

3,194.77 4,506.97

21.43 85.15

117.60 88.90
84.45 46.46

272.71 117.60
75.13 84.45

(145.79) (66.69)

(145.79) (66.69)

Raw Materials, Components and Packing Materials
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less:Inventory at the end of the year
Less:Disclosed under Exceptional Item*
Cost of RawMaterials, Components and Packing Materials consumed

Purchasesof stock-in-trade
Opening Inventory
Manufactured goods
Work in progress

Closing Inventory
Manufactured goods
Work in progress

Changes in inventories of finished goods, spares, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Total Changes in inventories of finished goods, spares, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

*An amount of ~90.00 lakhs for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2025 charged to Statement of Profit & Losson account of abnormal loss due to
obsolescence of certain raw material.

Note 26: Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March

31,2025 31,2024

104.86 96.76
5.39 5.91
1.84 1.49
q.47) 0.09
7.23 4.27

117.86 108.52

Year Ended March Year Ended March
31,2025 31,2024

Salariesand Wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Expensesrelated to post-employment defined benefit plan
Expensesrelated to compensated absences
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total Employee benefits expense

Note 27: Finance costs
Particulars

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Interest on LeaseLiabilities
Other borrowing costs
Total Finance costs

0.86
7.53
4.14

3.44
7.98
6.48

12.52 17.89

Note 28: Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March

31,2025 31,2024

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Total Depreciation and amortisation expense

19.28
26.99

28.44
31.62

46.27 60.07
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Note 29: Other expenses
Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March

31,2025 31,2024

32.79 46.62

11.96 9.70
2.29 4.61
6.10 6.98

111.65 117.43
15.00 13.65
1.00 1.34
0.82 0.34
2.17 0.78
4.35 7.84
0.22 0.90
18.21 18.89
17.00 18.00
0.25 2.27

223.79 249.34

Electricity Power and fuel
Repairs and Maintenance:

Building
Machinery

Insurance
Freight, Forwarding and Delivery
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 29(a))
Printing and Stationery
Communication cost
Travelling and Conveyance
Legal and Professional Fees
Ratesand taxes, excluding taxes on income
Other Establishment Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses(Refer Note 29(b))
Losson disposal of property, plant and equipment
Total Other expenses

29(a) Payment to Auditors
As Statutory auditor
For Audit fee (includes Limited Review fees)
For reimbursement of expenses
As Cost auditor
As Tax auditor

11.40 11.40
0.35
1.00
2.25 2.25

15.00 13.65

29(b) Details of corporate social responsibility expenses

i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
ii) Amount spent during the year (in cash)
(a) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
(b) On purpose other than (a) above
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year
(d) Total of previous years shortfall
(e) Reasonfor shortfall
(I) Nature of CSRactivities

17.00 17.94

17.00 18.00

Making availabe Making availabe
safe drinking water safe drinking water

(g) Details of related party transactions, e.g. contribution to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to CSRexpenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard.
(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a

contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shown be shown
separately.
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Note 30: Income tax
(a) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March
31,2025 31,2024

Current tax
In respect of the current year
In respect of prior years

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year
In respect of the prior year

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year

b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset)
Before tax
Tax (expense) benefit
Net of tax

c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

50.94
11.15

195.43
(1.30)

62.09 194.13

3.55 1.34

3.5S 1.34

65.64 195.47

Year Ended March Year Ended March
31.2025 31.2024

(2.93)
0.74
(2.19)

(1.30)
0.33
(0.97)

As at March 31, 2025
% Amt
As at March 31, 2024

% Amt

25.17%
238.00
59.90

Profit before tax
Tax using the Company's tax rate
Effect of:
Non deductible expense
Change in temporary differences
Earlier year tax impact
Effective tax rate

1.80% 4.28
-4.07% (9.69)
4.68% 11.15

27.58% 65.64

754.78
25.17% 189.96

0.60% 4.53
0.30% 2.27
-0.17% (1.30)
25.90% 195.47
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31. Earnings per share

Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March
31. 2025 31 2024

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 172.36 559.31
10 10

Facevalue per equity share
70.00 70.00

Weighted average number of equity shares
used in the calculation of basic and diluted

2.46 7.99Basicand diluted earninqs per share

32. Contingent liabilities

Particulars Year Ended March Year Ended March
31,2025 31,2024

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt (see note (i) and (ii) below)

-Sales tax matters
-Value added Tax -FY2013-14
-Value added Tax -FY2015-16
Total

-GST matters
-Goods & ServiceTax - GSTAudit (AY 2018-19 and AY 2019-20)
Total

0.17 4.53
0.59 0.59
0.76 5.11

2.11 1.91
2.11 1.91

140.54 140.54
263.39 263.39

0.51 0.51
3.39 3.39

189.03 189.03
596.86 596.86

-Income tax matters
-Disallowance of deduction under 801C-FY2011-12
-Addition of GST& PFFY2020-21
-Disallowance of deduction under 80lC (FY 14-15)
-Disallowance of MAT Credit FY2015-16
-Transfer Pricing adjustment 2016-17
Total

Notes

(i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

(ii) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse
effect on its financial position. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
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33. Leases

The Company's lease asset classesprimarily consist of leasesfor building, for which the leaseagreement year
is 59 Months. The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesseswhether the contract is a leaseor not. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
time in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered on or after
1April 2019.
An additional space has been taken to the above premises for a period of 24 months starting from 1 March
2025.

(A) Right-of-use assets

The Company has presented right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of Investment property
in note no. 5 - right-of-use assets

Particular Amount
Balanceasat 1April 2023 84.26
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 -
Addition to right-of-use assets -
Depreciation charged for the year 31.62
Balance as on 31 March 2024 52.64
Balanceasat 1 April 2024 52.64
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 -
Addition to right-of-use assets 37.71
Depreciation charged for the Period 26.99
Balance as on 31 March 2025 63.36

(B) Leaseliabilities

Particular Amount
Balanceasat 1 April 2023 98.64
Addition to Leaseliabilities -
Less:Leasepayments made during the year 39.50
Add: Interest charged on lease liabilities 7.98
Balance as on 31 March 2024 67.11
Current 38.94
Non Current 28.17
Balanceas at 1 April 2024 67.11
Addition to Leaseliabilities 37.71
Less:Leasepayments made during the year 36.52
Add: Interest charged on lease liabilities 7.53
Balance as on 31 March 2025 75.83
Current 37.79
Non Current 38.03



(C) Amount recognised in profit & Loss
Particular Amount
Interest on lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2025 7.53
Depreciation on right-of-use assetsfor the period ended 31st March 2025 26.99
Rent charged for the period ended 31st March 2025 -

(D) Amount recognised in statement of cash flow
Particular Amount
Total cashoutflow for leases 36.52

(E) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
As at

Maturity Analysis-Contractual undiscounted cash flow 31-Mar-25
LessThan one Year 37.79
One to FiveYears 38.03
More than FiveYears -

Total 75.83
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34. Related Party Disclosures

i) List of related parties and nature of relationship.

Name of Party
Principal shareholders:
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd)

Holding Company
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd)

Nature of relationship

Holding Company w.e.f 01 February, 2022

Holding Company w.eJ 01 February, 2022

ii) Non executive directors
Mr. Gaurav Pradip Khandelwal
Mr. Srinivas Survarao Avvaoari
Mr. Suresh Redhu

iii) List of related parties and nature of relationship with whom transaction have taken place during current I Previous year

Name of Party Nature of relationship

Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) Holding Company w.e.f 01 February, 2022

Particulars Transactions during the year Transactions during the year
ended 31 March 2025 ended 31 March 2024

Entities Entities
Principal controlled by Principal controlled by

shareholders principal shareholders principal
shareholders shareholders

Revenue from operations
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) 3,664.89 - 5,435.47 -

ELectricitycharges
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) 32.79 - 46.62 -

Repairs and maintenance
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) - - 0.10 -

Purchase of Raw Materia! / ConsumabLes Other
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) 15.76 - 270.32 -

Rent
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) 35.91 - 39.50 -

iv) Outstanding balances of related parties'
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Entities Entities
Principal controlled by Principal controlled by

shareholders principal shareholders principal
shareholders shareholders

Trade receivable
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) 572.75 - 2,718.10 -

Security deposits
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) 7.48 - 7.48 -

TradepayabLes
Eureka Forbes Limited (Formerly Forbes Enviro Solutions Ltd) - - - -

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis. None of the balances are secured.
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35. Financial Instrument - Fair value and risk management

A. Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table showsthe carrying amounts and fair valuesof financial assetsand financials liabilities, including their levelsof in the fair value hierarchy:

As at 31 March 2025

Carrying amount Fair value
Other financial Other financial Total

FVOCI- equity
assets - liabilities - carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

instruments
amortised cost amortised cost amount

Financial assetsmeasured at fair value
Investmentin equity securities 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71

0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71

Financial assetsnot measured at fair value
Trade receivables
Cashand cashequivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets

596.12
1,936.17

596.12
1,936.17

8.01 8.01
2,540.29 2,540.29

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings
Trade payables
Leaseliabilities
Other financial liabilities

220.26
75.83
0.30

220.26
75.83
0.30

296.39 296.39

TheCompanyhasnot disclosedthe fair valuesfor financial instruments suchastrade receivables,inter corporate deposits, cashand cashequivalents,other
bank balances,loans,borrowings, leaseliabilities, trade payable,other financial assetsand financial liabilities, becausetheir carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

As at 31 MiI.rch2024

Carrying amount Fair value

Other financialFVOCI- equity Other financial Total
carrying
amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totalinstruments
assets - liabilities -

amortised costamortised cost

Financial assetsmeasured at fair value
Investmentin equity securities 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71

0.71 0.71 0.71 0.71

Financial assetsnot measured at fair value
Trade receivables
Cashand cashequivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets

2,751.54
1.04
0.50
8.01

2,751.54
1.04
0.50
8.01

2.761.08 2,761.08

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings
Trade payables
Leaseliabilities
Other financial liabilities

349.21
67.11
0.30

349.21
67.11
0.30

416.62 416.62

TheCompanyhasnot disclosedthe fair valuesfor financial instrumentssuchastrade receivables,cashand cashequivalents,other bank balances,loans,
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B. Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Inter relationship between
Type Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs significant unobservable

inputs and fair value

Investment in In the previous years, Company had invested in 7,143 equity shares of face value of Rs 10

equity each. The Company has purchased this investment and believes that the difference between

securities fair value and face value of the investment is not significant. Hence the fair value is
considered to be similar to the carrying value.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for the level 3
fair values.

Particulars Investment in equity securities
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.71
Purchasesduring the year
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.71
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C. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

i) Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Company conducts yearly risk assessment activities to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company has a system in place to ensure risk identification and ongoing and periodic risk assessment is carried out. The Board of directors periodically

monitors the risk assessment.

ii) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in financial loss.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March

2025 2024

Trade receivables 596.12 2,751.54
Inter corporate deposits to related party
Cash and cash equivalents 1,936.17 1.04
Other bank balances - 0.50
Other financial assets 8.01 8.01

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region of the Company was:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 31 March

2025 2024

Within India 596.12 2,751.54

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances at the reporting date by type of countsrparty
was:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 31 March

2025 2024
Holding company 596.12 2,751.54
Bank balances and deposits with banks 1,936.17 1.54
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Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed as per Company's established policy,procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit risk has
alwaysbeen managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers
to whichthe Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On account of adoption of IndAS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision
matrixto compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables.The provisionmatrixtakes into account historical experience with customers.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured as the Company does not hold collateral as security. Since the Company derives its significant revenue from a
related party, the Company is not exposed to significant credit risk.

The age of trade and other receivables at the reporting date was:
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 31 March
2025 2024

Not due 596.10 1,759.06
0-30 days 494.25
31-90 days 0.02 498.23
more than 90 days -

596.12 2,751.54

Bank balances and deposits with banks

Credit riskfrom balances with banks is managed by the company's finance department as per Company's policy.Investment of surplus funds are made only
with approved counter parties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of
Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's Board of directors. The limits are set to
minimisethe concentration of risksand therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidityrisk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
deliveringcash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilitieswhen they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The followingare the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitiesat the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

IY It 31 Mar~h2025
Contractual cash flows

Carrying
Total

6 months or 6-12 months 1-2 years
More than 5

less
2-5 years

amount ~ears
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables 220.26 220.26 220.26
Lease liabilities 75.83 75.83 18.43 19.36 38.03
Other financial liabilities 0.30 0.30 0.30

296.39 296.39 238.69 19.36 38.33

IY 1t31 MI[~b~024
Contractual cash flows

Carrying
Total

6 months or
6-12 months 1-2 years

More than 5
2-5 years

amount less ~ears
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables 349.21 349.21 349.21
Leaseliabilities 67.11 67.11 19.47 19.47 28.17
Other financial liabilities 0.30 0.30 0.30

416.62 416.62 368.98 19.47 28.17
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iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will
affect the Company's income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposureswithin acceptable parameters.while optimising the return.

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency payables,
deposits with banks and borrowings. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign
exchangerate risk and interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

TheCompany is exposed to foreign currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies
in which purchasesare denominated and the functional currencyof the company.The functional currencyof the
Company is Indian Rupees.The Company is primarily exposedto foreign currency fluctuation between the USD
and Indian Rupees.

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk (based on notional
amounts) as reported to the management is as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Financial liabilities

Currency
Amount Amount

Amount Amount
in foreign Currency in foreign

in Rupees in Rupees
currency currency

Tradepayables USD USD 2.93 244.12
2.93 244.12

Sensitivity analysis

A 10%appreciation of the foreign currency as indicated below, against Indian Rupeeswould havedecreased
gain by the amounts shown below:

Profit or
Particulars loss
31 March 2025
ForeignCurrency(10%strengthening) -

31 March 2024
ForeignCurrency(10%strengthening) 24.41

A 10%depreciation of the foreign currency against Indian Rupeeswould havehad the equal but opposite effect
on the abovecurrencyto the amounts shown above,on basisthat all other variables remain constant.
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Interest risk
The Company is not exposed to interest rate changed, since there are no borrowings during the year.
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments was as

follows:

Particulars
As at

31 March 2025
As at

31 March 2024
Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased gain as at year end by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss

31 March 2025
Variable-rate instruments -
Cash flow sensitivity -
31 March 2024
Variable-rate instruments -
Cash flow sensitivity -

A decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rates at the reporting date would have had equal but opposite effect
on the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variable remain constant.

36. Segment reporting

The Company was set up with the objective of manufacturing reverse osmosis membrane elements and other
related water treatment products. This is the only activity performed and is thus also the main source of risks and
returns. Accordingly, the Company has a single reportable segment. Further, as the Company does not operate in
more than one geographical segment hence the relevant disclosures as per Ind AS 108 are not applicable to the
company.
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(All amounts are Rs. in Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

37. Regulatory Disclosures
1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against

the Company for holding any Benami property.

2) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

3) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROCbeyond the

statutory period.

4) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

5) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries);
or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

6) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or;
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

7) The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such
as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

8) The Company does not have any cash credit facility from banks and, accordingly, has not been required to file
monthly statements of current assets.

9) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee·
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)whose title deeds are not held in the name of
the Company.

10) The Company has not made any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans that are granted to promoters,
directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any
other person, that are:
(a) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

11) Certain amounts reported in the financial statements for the year 31 March 2024 have been regrouped/
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38. Recognised deferred tax assets/(lIabllitles)
Deferred tax assets/(Iiabilltles) are attributable to the following:

Deferred tax assets
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Lease labilities 3.14 3.64
Property. plant and equipment
Minimum alternate tax
Provision - employee benefits
Deferred tax assets/(Iiabilitles)
Setoff
Net deferred tax as5ets/(liabllitles)

3.23

5.10
11.47

6.54

Deferred tax (liabilities) Net deferred tax (Ilabllltles)/assets
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3.14 3.64
3.23 6.54

5.10 4.84
11.47 15.02

11.47 15.02

Recognised In Balance as on Recognised In Recognised In Balance as on

OCIduring 3I March 2024 profit or loss OCI during 2024- 31 Mar 2025
2023_24 during2024.25 25

3.64 (0.50) 3.14
6.54 (3.31) 3.23

0.33 4.84 0.26 5.10
0.33 15.02 (3.81) 0.26 11.47

4.84
15.02

15.0211.47

b) Movement of temporary differences
Balance as on
1 April 2023

Recognised In
profit or 1055
during2023-'4

lease labilities
Property. plant and equipment
Minimum alternate tax
Provision - employee benefits

3.62 0.02
7.29 (0.76)

5.11 (0.60)
16.03 (1.34)
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39 Ratios
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 Chanae Reasonfor variance
Current Ratio = [Current Assets/Current Liabilities] 11.24 8.99 25% Due to decrease in current liabilities and

increase in current assets

Debt Equity Ratio (times) = Net Debt/Net Worth - -
Debt Service Coverage ratio (times) = [(EBITDA-Current Tax)/ - 28.96 -100% No Borrowings at year end

(Gross Interest+Scheduled principal repayment of Long term

Debts)]

Return on Equity Ratio = PAT/Net Worth 4.62% 15.88% -71% Due to decrease in Profit after tax

Inventory Turnover ratio (times) = [COGS /Average Inventory] 4.02 6.14 -35% Due to decrease in Cost of goods sold

(Annualisedl
Trade receiables ratio (times) = [Credit sales / Average Trade 2.26 2.21 2% Due to decrease in receivables

Receivablel (Annualisedl
Trade payables turnover ratio = Net Credit Purchases/Trade 5.20 7.99 -35% Due to decrease in advance purchase

Pavables
Net capital turnover ratio = Net Sales/Net working capital 1.12 1.73 -35% Due to decrease in net sales

Net Profit Margin (%) = Profit after tax/Revenue from 4.50% 9.83% -54% Due to decrease in net profit and sales

Operations
Return on Capital employed/Return on investment = 9.24% 21.98% -58% Due to decrease in EBIT

EBIT/Capital Emoloved
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